with auspicious weather. Lincoln, too, started in
with a bright and clear inaugural sky. Ten of the
seventeen similar events since then have been on
days more or less clear and sunny.

After Lincoln's second term—which began
with threats of rain and muddy streets—Grant
had two inaugural Thursdays, luckless as to
weather. The parade that swept down the Ave-
nue to deafening cheers for him when President-
elect the first time, and marched back with him
up the Avenue, subsequent to his taking the offi-
cial oath, was drenched by a heavy downpour.
And yet it was pronounced "the grandest affair
of the kind ever before." Every building along
the Avenue was decorated; every window and
housetop occupied. There were intense cold (+
degrees below zero in the morning) and a raging
storm four years later. At the Capitol Grant sat
in the chair that Washington had occupied at
Federal Hall in New York. The parade, which
moved the length of the Avenue and back again,
included Annapolis and West Point cadets with-
out overcoats.

Snows have preceded or accompanied five
parades. There was a heavy snow fall before the
second Monroe day, already alluded to, and also
before the second Jackson day (Monday, March
4, 1833), exactly a century ago. Garfield came
into office on a cold snappy Friday after all Wash-
ington had been blanketed with white the eve-
nings before. The air was full of rain and driven
snow when 50,000 Democrats paraded with
Cleveland (Saturday, March 4, 1893), after his
second swearing in.

The climax of all wintry inaugurations was for
Taft (Thursday, March 4, 1909), when the
Weather Bureau prophesied it would be clear and sunny. The day turned out to be a blizzard of surprising severity which smashed down telegraph lines, stalled traffic on land and sea and isolated the National Capital from the rest of the country. By heroic exertions an army of shovellers cleared Pennsylvania Avenue for the Taft parade, in which Mrs. Taft rode with her husband and set a precedent that President and Mrs. Wilson followed at his second inauguration.

Because his two administrations were on either side of Harrison’s Republican administration, Cleveland participated in four parades as President or President-elect. This is more than any of his two-term predecessors, or successors have done. The last was the “glorious, golden, sunny” Thursday (1887) of the first McKinley parade. Cleveland’s estimates in the head carriages of these four parades were all Republican Presidents—Arthur, Harrison (twice), and McKinley.

Benjamin Harrison’s inauguration was a "meteorological terror" with rain falling in torrents. Progress from the White House was nevertheless in an open landau (Monday, March 4, 1889). Cleveland and Harrison wore heavy overcoats, closely buttoned, and beaver hats. Umbrellas and a huge polar bear rug were provided. Cleveland could not open the umbrellas he held to shield himself and Harrison and said to Secretary of the Treasury Fairchild, who stood near by:

"Lend us your umbrellas. We are all honest men and will return it."

"I am not sure of that," was the good-natured reply, "but I will have to trust you."

The Hoover inauguration (Monday, March 4, 1929) was another very bad, rainy day. Few of the sixteen observation stands for accommodation of 31,000 spectators, were covered. Those who braved the elements to witness a very creditable parade, where an exhibition of 55 airplanes and five lighter-than-air craft high above the line of march, was a distinct novelty, were rain soaked. Coolidge and Hoover went to the Capitol and returned from there in a limousine, in which they could hardly be recognized by spectators.

Parades of other days are linked historically with Pennsylvania Avenue as a great triumphal way. The Avenue had unpretentious beginnings, except for its linear dimensions. It was first surfaced when Jefferson had it strewed with gravel and planted two rows of poplars on either side.

For many years there was only unimproved ground to the south, interspersed with marshes. Inaugural celebrants gathered at scattered houses, stores and inns along its north line. Van Buren’s parades had a very special gala day, because the old dirt Avenue had been macadamized a few years before. The second Grant parade proceeded over wooden blocks that had been put down in 1870. The splendid marching surface of this day dates from 1907.

Even with the extended marching front that this wide thoroughfare permits, parades multiplied in such numbers from inauguration to inauguration that when Democrats came into power with Cleveland “the greatest pageant ever before seen in times of peace on the Avenue”—with General Fitzhugh Lee in ex-Confederate gray a figure of secondary interest only to the new President—was six hours in passing. At Garfield’s inauguration four years earlier there had been 6,000 Pennsylvania National Guards in line with Governor Hoyt at their head. There were 8,000 of them on Harrison’s day, eight years after Garfield, together with 20,000 civic paraders—more than ever before in a procession. Inaugural authorities soon deemed it imperative to restrict the roster.

It is said the Franklin Roosevelt parade may be the last along this historic route. Constitution Avenue, now partially constructed—flanked on the south by the Mall and on the north by imposing government structures—may be adopted as the nation’s ceremonial thoroughfare. In any event the inspiring chronicles of bygone inaugural parades probably only preface unwritten ceremonies of impenetrable years to come. The greater chronicles should be of the future, whose generations will visit here to glorify new Presidents and new administrations in a newer, more grandly beautiful setting by the Potomac.
SOME LANDMARKS of OLD WASHINGTON

By GEORGE RUTHERFORD BROWN
Member, Inaugural Program Committee

THE neighborhoods of the White House and Capitol continue to be of chief interest to visitors in Washington, as they were in the very beginning of the city's history, when the Capitol of the Union was removed, in 1800, from Philadelphia to the shores of the Potomac.

A century and a third after Mrs. John Adams hung out the family wash in the East Room of the "President's Palace," as it was called, and Thomas Jefferson was presiding over the Senate, these two neighborhoods remain unique, richest now as always in the traditions of those whose gone into the making of the history of the Republic.

Many of the ancient landmarks have gone forever, but many yet remain. They are still saturated with the romance of what has become, from a small straggling village in an almost virgin wilderness, the Capital of the greatest nation in the world, and one of the most beautiful and artistic cities to be found anywhere on earth.

Some of the buildings associated with the great and the near-great, the dwelling places of those who have lived in Washington, whose ghostly shadows even yet haunt the streets and by-ways where they were once so very much alive, have only recently vanished forever in such sections as the "Mall Triangle," and the "Municipal Center" areas, where modern government office buildings have been reared, or will be reared later on, when the construction that was in part stopped by the present depression, shall be resumed.

Thus many historic buildings, associated with the daily lives of our Presidents, of our distinguished and picturesque statesmen, of many others in various walks of life who have brought distinction and glory to the city, which were seen by visitors who attended the last inauguration of a President of the United States, will be seen again by no mortal eyes. They live only in memory,
but here they shall abide as long as men cherish the recollection of their immortal ancestors.

Some of these ancient landmarks which still survive go back to a remote period long antedating the founding of Washington, antedating, indeed, the Revolution which made an American Capital a necessity.

That White House neighborhood immediately west of what used to be called, in one period, until Theodore Roosevelt changed it, the “Executive Mansion,” is singularly interesting. Not long since, in the grounds of the Naval Hospital at the foot of 24th Street, northwest, there was re-discovered the historic old Braddock Rock, or, as it was better known, the “Quay of Quays,” upon which, according to tradition, some of Braddock’s men landed after their short voyage up the river from Alexandria, when at the very beginning of their ill-fated expedition.

That Braddock’s soldiers debarked upon this huge outcropping of stone, is merely a matter of tradition, unsupported by direct historic confirmation, but it is a tradition that doubtless will endure as long as the rock itself. It is known to have been a landing-place for Potomac boats, and doubtless George Washington himself has come ashore there many times. The stone today is far inland from the river, which has been pushed back by nature and by various reclamation projects. Ground has been filled in all around it, and it now lies in the hospital grounds, in a large circular pit.

In this same neighborhood, on the south side of K street, between 26th street and the river, one may still see today two imposing brick houses, slightly changed by alterations, which were built as early as 1796, by Robert Peter, of Georgetown, who married a granddaughter of Mrs. Washington, and in which Washington was frequently a guest. In the early days they were the first British Legation, being leased for that purpose in 1803.

In the early days a canal, long since filled in, ran along the line of B street, an old lock-house still remaining at 17th street. On the site of the Pan-American Union building, perhaps Wash-
"Octagon House," which John Tayloe, of Mount Airy, Va., was completing, as the Adams family took up their abode in the "President's Palace," from plans by Dr. William Thornton, one of the architects of the Capitol. It was in this house that President Madison, and the immortal Dolly, resided for a time after the burning of the President's House by the British in 1814. Here, also, the treaty of Ghent, which brought permanent peace to the English-speaking peoples was signed, on a table which is still to be found in the historic room in which this event occurred.

From "Octagon House," so called from its unusual shape, it is but a step to Lafayette Square, which was overlooked by the back of the White House until the Jackson Administration, when the official place of residence of American Presidents was turned around, as it were, by the erection of the present north portico. The White House originally faced South, toward the river.

Many changes have taken place in and around this beautiful park, with its rocking-horse statue of "Old Hickory," which was dedicated January 8, 1853, and its more artistic memorials in bronze; but quite a few of its ancient mansions yet remain, and to them Washington clings somewhat desperately before the march of progress, with a yearning to preserve as long as possible these venerable shrines.

In the early days Lafayette Square was a dreary commons, the site of a market and a graveyard, and a parade ground. It was thus through Jefferson's two administrations, and it was not until 1815 that the second building abutting upon what has since become a park of surpassing loveliness was erected. This was St. John's church, where so many Presidents have worshipped. There the old church still stands, well into its second century, only a little less venerable than the White House itself.

Four years after St. John's was built Commodore Stephen Decatur invested a part of his prize money in some lots west of Lafayette Square. In 1819 he built at the southwest corner of what is now Jackson Place and H Street, the plain, substantial brick building which still stands, and which still, after many ownerships, bears the name of the unhappy naval officer who built it, and who died there, March 22, 1820, after his celebrated duel with Post-Captain James Barron. Here Henry Clay resided when Secretary of State, and Martin Van Buren also, as well as many other distinguished personages. It is a landmark indeed.

Just below the Decatur House stands the Brookings Institution, on the site of the house which Dr. Thomas Ewell, of the Navy, built shortly after Decatur House had been erected. Vice President Schuyler Colfax afterwards lived there, as indeed did numerous members of various Cabinets. In this house lived Gen. Daniel E. Sickles, who shot and killed Philip Barton Key, February 27, 1859, on the east side of Lafayette Square, sensational outcome of one of the most romantic love stories in the annals of Washington.

Another interesting house on Jackson Place is the more modern residence best known as No. 22, where James G. Blaine lived in the Eighties, and which was the temporary "White House" from June 27 to November 6, 1902, when President Theodore Roosevelt occupied it with his family while the White House was being remodelled by the addition of the present office annex. Up to
this time the President’s offices were on the second floor of the White House, and the privacy of the Presidents and their families was constantly invaded by all sorts of callers, including hordes of office-seekers.

Just around the corner, No. 1651 Pennsylvania Avenue, there still stands, beautifully cared for, a house now more than a century old, known as the “Blair Mansion.” Built in 1824 by Surgeon General Joseph Lovell, of the Army, it was purchased in 1836 by Francis Preston Blair, Sr., in whose family it has since remained. Here the editor of the Globe, and one of the famous “Kitchen Cabinet,” resided during and after the Jackson era.

George Bancroft resided in this house when he was Secretary of the Navy in the Cabinet of President Polk. It was in this house also that an offer of the command of the Union Army is said to have been made on behalf of President Lincoln to Robert E. Lee.

On the east side of Lafayette Square—Madison Place—one building yet remains which is of transcendent historic interest. The corner portion of the Cosmos Club was the home of Dolly Madison, when she returned to Washington to live, and in which she died on July 12, 1849. The theater just south of this stands on the site of the old house which Commodore John Rodgers built in 1830. It was in this house that Lewis Payne made his attack upon William H. Seward. Roger B. Taney resided there when he was Secretary of the Treasury in Jackson’s Cabinet, and in later years it was the home of James C. Blaine, who died there January 27, 1893.

Far greater changes have occurred in the vicinity of the Capitol than in the White House neighborhood. Here the alterations have obliterated nearly every relic of the old Washington that has faded so completely into the recesses of loving memory. The erection of the Senate and House Office Buildings swept away many of the landmarks of this region. The extension of the Capitol grounds in the Seventies saw the passing of many venerable hostleries and quaint Congressional boarding houses which formerly stood between the Capitol and the future site of the Library of Congress and the new Supreme Court building, now in course of construction. The recent extension of the Capitol grounds to Union Station still further radically alters the appearance of this neighborhood.

The Library of Congress was built on a square rich in traditions. At about what is now its front entrance stood Carrol Row, in one of whose houses Lincoln lived when he was an humble Congressman.

The Supreme Court building occupies a square chiefly of historic interest because at one corner of it—the southeast corner of First and A streets, northeast—stood a building erected in 1815 for the use of Congress, following the burning of the Capitol by the British, which was long known as the “Old Brick Capitol,” and “Old Capitol Prison.” Here James Monroe was inaugurated March 4, 1817, in the open air, the only President, with the exception of Washington and John Adams, not inaugurated at the Capitol in Washington. John C. Calhoun died there when it was a lodging house, in 1850.

This building became a military prison during the Civil War. Belle Boyd, the celebrated Confederate spy, was a prisoner there, and in the yard Henry Wirz, of Andersonville, was hanged...
November 10, 1865. The "Old Brick Capitol" was torn down in 1867, and on the site, in 1869, George T. Brown, Sergeant-at-Arms of the Senate, financed by Senator Lyman Trumbull, of Illinois, built three large brick houses which stood until they were in turn torn down to prepare the Supreme Court site, and which, in later years, became confused in the minds of some with the "Old Brick Capitol" itself. The Trumbull Row house were afterwards the headquarters of the National Woman's Party.

It is between the Capitol and the White House that visitors attending the inauguration of President Franklin D. Roosevelt, and who have had the good fortune to have visited Washington before, will note the most complete alteration in the aspect of the old city. Here landmarks have been torn away by the score, so that historic Pennsylvania Avenue, which remained as Lincoln had known it until almost the other day, as it were, bears little resemblance to its former self.

Visitors will see whole squares swept clean, the very cellars of the ancient mansions even filled in, while here and there great new buildings, in various stages of completion, present an entirely new skyline to the startled gaze. Those who attended the last inauguration and have not been in Washington since, will scarcely recognize this ancient heart of the old city, which had remained virtually unchanged for more than half a century until the Government undertook the construction of those new public buildings which, when they are completed, will alter the appearance of the Capital still more, and give that part of the city lying between White House and Capitol a permanence of form that may reasonably be expected to endure for a century.

Across the lower Avenue a grand new boulevard has been flung in a vast sweep. Called Constitution Avenue, by Act of Congress, it lies along the line of B Street, from the Senate Office Building westward to the Lincoln Memorial, a part of it covering the line of old Tiber Creek, and the later canal which in the old days divided Washington, and gave to the entire Southwest section of the city its ancient place-name "The Island."

This noble avenue in the years to come will be lined with public buildings. Some of them are already rearing their ganty steel skeletons to the sky. But today one finds the "Mall Triangle" building projects in a bewildering state, and giving little promise of the architectural beauties to come, if indeed, the high expectations of the American people who are expending here so many millions, are not to be disappointed in the end by the inadequacy of the artistic conception, and that perfect balance which is essential to beauty.

As the returning visitor walks up the Avenue today he will note with something of a pang that the venerable Botanic Garden, on the south, between Maryland and Pennsylvania Avenues, and First and Third Streets, has been swept away. Established in 1820, for many years it was surrounded by a low red brick wall, surmounted by a gray stone coping and a high iron picket fence. Many will observe with regret that the familiar fence is no more, and that Bartholdi's beautiful fountain is no longer in its familiar place.

A new Botanic Garden south of the old one is nearing completion, and the old one will be turned into a park, which will give to the Grant
Memorial a finer setting than hitherto it enjoyed within the garden enclosure.

Passing up the Avenue the visitor who was familiar with old Washington will observe with something of a shock that from Botanic Garden to Ninth Street the south side of the street has been swept virtually clear. Vanished forever are those quaint old ante-bellum houses, from the roofs of some of which sharpshooters guarded Lincoln as he rode down this historic mile on his way to the Capitol in 1861 to take the oath as President of the United States. Some of these quaint old houses, so long a familiar part of the Washington landscape, must have been standing when the British rode along in 1814, bearing a torch, as it were, from the burning Capitol, to the White House.

The two squares on the south side of the Avenue immediately west of the Botanic Garden were the scene last summer of the so-called riot of the "bonus marchers." The ex-service men had taken up their quarters in some of the half demolished buildings in these squares. After they had been driven out by the troops all the remaining structures were torn down, and their cellars filled in, so that today no vestige here remains of one of the most memorable and tragic incidents in the whole annals of the Nation's Capital.

An historic building in this area thus obliterated was an ancient house numbered 467 Missouri Avenue, in which John Tyler resided before he became President.

The old Sixth Street Depot, at Sixth and B Streets, where President Garfield was assassinated on July 2, 1881, was torn down by orders of President Theodore Roosevelt, after the opening of the new Union Station, in 1907, but Center Market, established in 1801 in Market Square, where the Avenue crosses the city's main north and south thoroughfare, Seventh Street, remained until comparatively recently. A vast excavation now marks the spot where the proposed new Department of Justice building will some day give an entirely strange and unfamiliar aspect to the scenes so long a part of this neighborhood.

So also has the old Bijou Theater at Ninth and C Streets, relic of the more ancient Canterbury Theater, passed on into history. One landmark in this area yet remains, the gaunt red brick building at the corner of Eleventh and C Streets, known to later generations as Kernan's Lyceum Theater, but originally, as Carusi's Saloon, one of the early centers of the fashionable social life of the city. In this hall inaugural balls were held in the early days.

Farther up the Avenue the new Department of Commerce Building is flung across several squares in a neighborhood once a part of one of the most notorious "Red Light" districts in the world. The whole square immediately south of the Avenue, between Fourteenth and Fifteenth Streets, has been denuded of its brick and stone, and now, as a park, it constitutes the magnificently expensive front yard of the $17,500,000 Commerce Building, which itself stands as a monument visualizing the stupendous expansion and costliness of the Federal Government.

Many will miss, in the square which now affords so imposing an approach to the Commerce Building, the old red brick theater—Albaugh's Grand Opera House—which was erected in 1884, and which was for so long a time the scene of many brilliant events in the theatrical world of Washington.
Incidentally, as one stands at the Fourteenth Street corner of this park, he can turn from what the Commerce Department has grown to be today, to the modest office building half way up the east side of Fourteenth Street—the Willard Building—in which the Department of Commerce and Labor—now divided into two departments—had its modest beginning only so long ago as the days of President Theodore Roosevelt.

On the lower Avenue the land on both sides of John Marshall Place, between Sixth and Third Streets, north to the City Hall, has been set aside for the proposed new "Municipal Center." Many of the buildings here have already been obliterated by the wreckers, and of these a great number were of much historic interest, including Jackson Hall, the old Globe Building, 339-341 Pennsylvania Avenue, and numerous houses in the three-hundred block of C Street, where in the old days lived Francis Scott Key, and Daniel Webster, and Henry Clay, all in a row, and further along, John C. Fremont and Senator Thomas H. Benton, of Missouri. In the same square in Indiana Avenue was the house in which Jackson's great Chief Justice, Taney, at one time lived.

Thus it will be seen that many of the most precious relics of ante-bellum Washington, and many others of great, if more recent historic interest, have been swept away before the government's vast building activities.

The "Municipal Center" area was formerly the center of the smart official life of the city. That now has moved into the northwest residential district, where, within a stone's-throw of one another, the visitors will find several places which have become part of the history of the city.

Chief among these is the residence of President Woodrow Wilson, on the south side of S Street, between Twenty-third and Twenty-fourth Streets, and just below that, at 2300 S Street, the house which is still owned by President Hoover, and was the residence from which he removed to the White House. Within sight of the Hoover home, looking north up Twenty-third Street, at 2215 Wyoming Avenue, is the home of a former President, Chief Justice William Howard Taft, in which he spent the pleasant and important years after he left the White House, and in which he died.

Twice, by coincidence, the Herbert Hoovers and the Franklin D. Roosevelts were close neighbors in Washington. During the early war period the Roosevelts lived at 1733 N Street, just down the way from that famous old Mid-Victorian pile, the British Embassy, which stood for so many years at N Street and Connecticut Avenue, a noted landmark in this section of the city, which has now gone the way of all brick and mortar. At this period the Hoovers lived at 1720 Rhode Island Avenue.

Later the Hoovers removed to the S Street house, and the Roosevelts spent the last few years of their stay in Washington at 2131 R Street.

Another interesting house in the neighborhood of the old British Embassy is the residence at 1810 N Street, where Theodore Roosevelt lived when he was Assistant Secretary of the Navy in the McKinley administration.

The passing of so many famous old Washington landmarks will always be observed with sorrow, but history is being made day by day and year by year. As one celebrated mansion vanishes into tradition, another is born into a fame of its own.
ROSTER OF THE INAUGURAL COMMITTEE

REAR ADMIRAL CARY T. GRAYSON, CHAIRMAN
JOHN F. COSTELLO, VICE CHAIRMAN
FREDERICK A. DELANO, VICE CHAIRMAN
H. ROZIER DULANY, VICE CHAIRMAN
MRS. J. BORDEN HARRIMAN, VICE CHAIRMAN
HUGH T. NELSON, EXECUTIVE SECRETARY
J. P. BARMHALL, SECRETARY TO GENERAL COMMITTEE
CORCORAN THOM, TREASURER
CHARLES A. DOUGLAS, GENERAL COUNSEL

MURPHYSBORO BLAIR
MRS. MARY T. BOARDMAN
JOHN RANDOLPH BOLLING
ROLF E. BOLLING
R. WHITCOMB BOLLING
SAMUEL BONAL
Y. E. BONNER
T. W. BRADLEY
T. F. BRADSHAW
E. C. BRANDEUS
HUGH N. BRAWNER
FRANK S. BRAYTON
MRS. FREDERICK H. BRADY
COL. EDWARD T. BROWN
MRS. ELMER W. BROWN
GEORGE RUTHERFORD BROWN

WALTER DUDLEY
HENRY E. J. DUDLEY
MRS. CLARENCE DILL
JOHN DOLPH
EDWARD T. S. DONOVAN
J. MELNOR DOWNEY
MRS. JOHN ALLAN DOUTHITT
CHARLES A. DOUGLAS
JUDGE M. M. DOYLE
COL. C. W. DURLEY
H. ROZIER DULANY
J. CLEMMENT DUNN
J. S. EATON
JOHN J. EDGSON
MRS. L. R. EDKINS, U. S. A., RET.
WILLIAM H. ELLIS
S. J. FEHR
MRS. J. FEHR ENSARY
EDWIN H. FITZ
JOSIAH FRANKLIN, JR.
W. W. EVERETT
W. J. EYTON
BERNARD FEDERICK
WILLIAM F. FERWICK
J. A. FISK
J. T. FRISBIE
JOHN J. FITZGERALD
J. E. FISHER
W. D. FLOOD
ROBERT V. FLEMING
BISHOP JAMES E. FREEMAN
W. G. GALLILLER
ISAAC GANS
WALTER GARRICK
LESLIE C. GARNET
GEORGE GIBBONS
PEGGY P. GIBBONS
ROBERT M. GATES
DR. M. G. GIBBS
MRS. CATALAN GLASS
C. C. GLOVER, JR.
E. C. GRAHAM

EDWIN M. GRAHAM
LUCY, COL. U. S. G. YAN, 10
GILBERT GREENE
FRANKLIN M. GUTHIER
EDGERTON S. GUY
JOHN J. HAGES
ALEX. H. HAYDEN
RANDAL H. HAYNE
COL. EDWIN A. HAYS
WILLIAM F. HAYNE
MRS. CHARLES S. HAMILTON
JOHN H. HANNA
WILLIAM HARDY
ARTHUR HARRINGTON
COL. ROBERT N. HARRISON
MRS. JOSEI HARRISON
MRS. PAT HARRISON
DR. GEORGE C. HAYDEN
MRS. JOHN G. HAYDEN
MRS. MILLIE C. HENRY
ARNOLD HENRY
MRS. SAMUEL HERRICK
J. PHILIP HERRMANN
CHRISTIAN HERZIK
W. B. HIRSCH
JON A. HURLEY
JOHN J. HURLEY
JOHN ASH HUSKIN
JOSEPH H. HUMES
JOHN A. HUNCELEY
CYNTHIA HUSKIN
MRS. ROSE GOVERNOR HOBBS
RICE W. HOPE
W. D. HUNTINGTON
BRAVE. R. HOWARD
WALTER B. HOWE
BISHOP EDWIN H. HUGHES
MRS. CORDELLE HULL
CLARENCE B. HURLEY
MRS. GEORGE MANSFIELD
MRS. HARRISON J. MANSFIELD
Inauguration of the President and Vice President • March 4, 1933

Frank R. Jelliff
Mrs. Isaac S. Johnson
Mrs. Mary Wright Johnson
Bernard B. Jones
Mrs. Harvey McGov Jones
Simon Kahn
Joseph D. Kaufman
Mrs. John M. Keating
Francis S. Key-Smith
Harry King
Whitfield Klutz
J. C. Knox
Wilson J. Lambert
Max Lankau
John E. Laity
David Lawrence
Ralph W. Lee
Martin A. Leake
Mrs. Henry Leonard
Thomas P. Littlepage
Buckingham Long
Mrs. Jacob Leander Loone
C. C. Lowe
Davie Lynn
Mat. Gen. Paul B. Malone
B. W. Marshall
George Marshall
Mrs. Wm. B. Mason
Arthur J. May
Mrs. Sidney T. Mathew
Rev. Albert J. McCartney
Brig. Gen. Charles L. McGawley
George B. Mielan
Charles C. McComb
Malcolm S. McConchie
L. R. McDaniel
Mrs. E. B. McLean
Frank R. McMillan
Rabbi Solomon A. Metz
Charles Michelson
C. Powell Minnegerode
Brig. Gen. Percy L. Miles
Mr. Joseph C. Miller
W. C. Miller
Benjamin S. Minor
Brig. Gen. William Mitchell
William Montgomery
W. Cabell Moore
Emgar More
Henry B. Morrow
E. J. Murphy
Hugh T. Nelson
Mrs. H. T. Nelson
Mrs. Bert New
Mrs. Frank G. Newlands
Oliver P. Newman
Fred K. Nielsen
Clarence F. Norton, Sr.
Clarence F. Norton, Jr.
Newlands Novis
Theodore W. Novis
Clarence O'Brien
Bert L. Olds
Judge Mary O'Toole
Robert L. Owens
A. Mitchell Palmer
Gen. Mason M. Patrick
Mary Patton
Eleanor Patterson
John J. Pastore
John Byrant Payne
Mrs. W. Craig Peacock
Rev. Frederick W. Perkins
Gen. John J. Pershing
H. L. Pettit
Major Geo. McElroy
J. Harvey Phillips
Ayer Pommerene
Mrs. Lester Pollock
John Pool
C. H. Pope
C. W. Pratt
Samuel J. Prescott
Osk Præston
William Jennings Price
Mrs. William Jennings Price
L. H. Reichelekelder
James B. Reynolds
Lindsay W. Rider
P. S. Rhodes
Mary Roberts Rinheart
William M. Ratte
Mrs. Joseph T. Robinson
Col. H. L. Roomy
Daniel C. Roeder
Mrs. Daniel C. Roeder
Mrs. Nellie Taylor Ross
Percy R. Rous
Leo Rove
Dr. E. S. Rowe
Rev. Fred. R. Ruffin
H. L. Rust, Jr.
Forest S. Rutherford
Lt. Col. Frank Louis Sandoz
John Saul
Jacob Scharf
Robert T. Scott
Mrs. Swager Sherrill
Gladie Shire
Joseph Show
Thomas W. Sidwell
Brig. Gen. George S. Siggins
Alfred L. Singler
Joseph J. Smit
Rev. Jos. R. Sisson
C. Bascom Snavley
Rev. John H. Snell
Rev. C. Ernest Smith
Chas. E. Smith
George Otis Smith
Dr. Edgar Snowden
E. C. Snyder
W. W. Stahle
Pax. D. P. Spearman
Henry B. Spencer
Mary L. Speer
R. L. Speyer
Gen. Anton Stephens
Rev. H. H. Sterrett
L. P. Stuhr
Jessie C. Suter
Mrs. Sidney T. Talatterson
Sidney P. Talatterson
Edward T. Taylor
Rev. James H. Taylor
Waytay Taylor
Alfred P. Thom
Corcoran Thom
Miss Caroline Huntington Thompson
Huntington Thompson
C. Carroll Toole
Chas. H. Tomkins
South Trumbull
T. D. Tuft
Joseph F. Tumulty
William Roy Vallance
Ernest G. Walker
Mrs. Hugh Wallace
George S. Wang
Wm. A. Warfield
Rev. Charles T. Warner
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Warren
Lee P. Warren
Gen. F. M. Watson
N. E. Weatherholt
Clarence A. Weaver
John Weaver
Robert D. Weaver
Ben T. Webster
A. Cautley Wells
Harry J. Wells
Mrs. Sumner Wells
Summer Wells
W. W. Wheeler
Dr. Chas. S. White
Wm. H. White, Jr.
Ferdinad William With
Mrs. Harvey W. Wiley
G. C. Wilkinson
Mrs. Charles Williamson
Charles R. Williams
Mrs. John R. Williams
Nathan B. Winwright
W. F. Wilmot
Harley P. Wilson
Lloyd Wilson
Mrs. Woodrow Wilson
Dr. H. A. Wood
Warde W. Wood
Donald Woodward
Robert Woolley
James G. Yaden
E. G. Yonker

Transportation Committee

Thomas P. Littlepage
Chairman
Miss Kittie C. Chang
Vice Chairman

Dorothy W. Hafel, Secretary
A. S. J. Atkinson
Capt. Robert Root Bennett
S. Russell Bowen
Joseph W. Bowle
Robert J. Cottrell
Maxwell Cox
J. B. Edwards
John H. Hanna
Frank L. Jenkins
Marshall Johnson
George E. Keneep
Alex Koolen
Inspector B. A. Lamb
L. C. Major
W. H. Marks
F. E. May
Vincent A. McGaray
Winfield Scott McGill
E. D. Mitchell
Daniel L. Moorman
Charles C. Morgan
Clarence F. Normant, Jr.
C. W. Owings

Edward S. Parise
Mrs. Elizabeth K. Peoples
Frank E. Remell
Michael D. Schapner
Thomas Status Settle
A. K. Shope
Alan D. Smith
Ernest N. Smith
C. T. Stewart
B. R. Tolson
George W. Vredevich
E. S. Wilson, Jr.
H. M. Keyser

Public Order Committee

Melvin C. Hafen, Chairman
Major Ernest W. Brown, Vice Chairman
Inspector Frank S. W. Bures
Charles P. Carke
Dr. Ernest Colvin
Howard E. Crawford
Eugene D. Davis
Edward A. Dent
Walter F. Fowler
C. Emery Galliger
J. B. Gordon
Capt. D. O. Hickey
Richard B. Keetch
Inspector B. A. Lamb
Major Henry Leonard
Dr. Benjamin W. Meeks
Levi. Rhoda J. Mellin
Caudle Owen
J. B. Ray
Wm. P. Richards
Orrell S. Smith
Major Gen. Anton Stephan
Wm. A. Van Duzer
George S. Watson
L. Perry West
Capt. Herbert C. Whitehurst

Medical Aid and Emergency Committee

Lt. Comm. William J. C. Agnew
Major Gen. W. M. Ireland
Chairman
Dr. Wil. Earl Clark,
Vice Chairman
Miss Evelyn Patton,
Vice Chairman
Major F. A. Blessie
John P. Brannam
Lt. Col. Harry G. Callahan
Brig. Gen. Carl R. Dannell
Senior Surgeon, R. M. Ginn
G. L. Hitz
Ira Lee Law
W. E. Longfellows
Capt. J. A. Mayhew
Dr. Edward J. Swartz
Col. W. W. Whiteside
Committee on Medals, Badges and Souvenirs
Robert W. Woolley, Chairman
Robert E. Boling, Vice Chairman
C. Powell Minnichrose, Vice Chairman
Mrs. Conway W. Cook, Secretary
Ray Baker
Eveline Bell
Charles W. Elliot
Robert J. Grant
Oliver P. Newman
Charles G. Ross
Mall Marian Edwards Shure
John T. Vance
Charles Weber
Ward B. Wood
Thomas W. Woodward
Mrs. Lucy de Graspheld Woolley

Committee on Printing and Engraving
John B. Colpits, Chairman
James W. W. Bryan, Vice Chairman
Joseph J. Sinnot, Vice Chairman
Russell Balderston
James V. Best
Dr. L. E. Beyl
James D. Biehl
A. H. Redmond
Arturo Carr
John B. Cleaton
Helen B. Colpits
Capt. C. W. Cook
P. Mocha Carr
Col. Harry Coote
Ralph A. Crinkle
R. A. Dickson
Capt. George W. Johns
Ralph W. Lawrence
Frank Lee
John J. Manning
Edgar A. Manley
Frank Morrison
Edward J. Murphy
T. N. O'Driscoll
Frederick P. H. Siddons
L. Harlow Satheron
Frederick W. Steckman
Coitine Walker
George W. Walker
Harry J. Wells
Joseph A. Wolter
Morton H. Wilner
Stanley H. Williamson

Historic Sites Committee
George Rothwell Brown, Chairman
John Claggart Proctor, Vice Chairman

A. Smith Bowman, Jr.
Williamus Baggett Bryan
Alvin C. Clark
Mrs. Daniel C. Roper
Delia H. Smith
Frederick W. Steckman
Dr. Walter A. Willis
Henry Littlefield West
Mrs. Harrell P. Wilson
Mrs. Alexandra Wolf
Miss Jean Wright

Inaugural Committee on Housing and Hospitality
Mrs. Blair Banneker, Chairman
Mrs. Charles E. McDonald, Vice Chairman

Colonel Edwin A. Halley
Curtis A. Hogen
Mrs. Richard V. Ouchlan
Mrs. Kate Tweedel Abrams
Mrs. W. L. Tweedel Abrams
Mrs. Leon Arnold
Mrs. George Baker
Theo J. Beikler
Robert F. Beresford
Miss Mary Bisbee
R. Wilmer Boling
Mrs. M. M. Bond
Mrs. Frank B. Branker
Mrs. S. M. Brown
Mrs. Mary C. Dayan
Mrs. H. F. C. Bryant
Mrs. William Henry Claggert
John W. Cleaton
Mrs. Edward D. Cottman
Mrs. John D. Day
Mrs. H. N. Day
Mrs. J. H. Davis
Mrs. C. Dean Miller
Mrs. John Frederick Esary
Mrs. Rose Yates Foskett
Robert M. Garts
Mrs. Carter Glass
Mrs. M. B. Glenn
Mrs. E. D. Glenn
Mrs. Kay G. Hayden
Mrs. J. M. H. Halley
Mrs. James M. Hamilton
Mrs. M. M. Hamilton
Mrs. M. M. Hamilton
Mrs. J. S. Johnson
Mrs. L. M. Moon Jones
Harvey L. McCoy Jones
Joseph D. Kaufman
Mrs. Edward B. Kehating
Mrs. Mary Lendle
Mrs. Emily Mackall
Mrs. Edward B. Melia
Mrs. G. Taylor Muncipal
Mrs. Burt New
Mrs. Oliver P. Newman
Mrs. Marie Osgood
Mrs. William Jennings Peake
Mrs. Caroline Reilly
Mrs. Joseph T. Robinson
Mrs. Daniel C. Roper
Mrs. Nellie Taylor Ross
Mrs. G. L. Smith
Mrs. M. J. Small
Mrs. J. H. Small
Mrs. Waverley Taylor
Rev. Dr. King
Mrs. Charles Williams

Inaugural Committee on Civic Bodies
Mrs. Bernard Twyore
Mrs. Mrs. Paulette M. Baker
Mrs. Lyda Mc. Faham
Mrs. Elizabeth Mattingly
Mrs. Jean Miles
Mrs. Northa L. Porter
Mrs. Blanchard Robison
Mrs. Sue W. Wolfe

Committee on Co-operation of Civic Bodies
Curtis A. Hogen, Chairman
C. W. Stetson, Clerk
Arthur Hannett
Mark Lunsford
Wallace B. Redmond
Archibald Shippe
Chester Warington

General Entertainment Committee
H. T. Thompson, Chairman

John W. Chandler
Mrs. Edward D. Cottman
Forrest S. Butterworth
Clarence A. Appleton
Miss Shyly Baker
Carroll B. Barkhin
George W. Beean
H. K. Berkeley
R. Wilmer Bell
E. J. Boothby
J. Clifford Bredow
Julian A. Baylawski
Harry C. Boteles
Rev. John R. Cartwright
Enoch A. Chase
Dr. Arthur A. Christie
Bruno Claggert
Mrs. A. D. Condon
Wade H. Cooper
Forrest Dinsmorefield
Melva Davis
Leonard W. Dreyfus
Douglas A. Dunne
Charles A. Douglas
Wade H. Eilie
Mrs. M. M. Moore Forrest
Mrs. Virginia L. Forward
Mrs. S. A. Gentry
Harley J. Gragg
Edwin J. Graham
Ewinn J. Hill
John Adams Hillman
George S. Holmes
A. F. E. Horn
Bishop Edward H. Hughes
Chris E. Jackson
Marschall H. Johnson
Mrs. Edward Keating
J. Miller Kenton
Sylvia N. King
Mrs. Fulton Lewis
Sadie B. Lusty
E. J. MacMillan
Rev. Albert J. McCarty
Robert W. McLay
Royal T. McKenna

[50] * * * * * * * *
Inauguration of the President and Vice President

March 4, 1933

Frank R. McNinch
Janice Meade
William Payne Meredith
Rabbi Solomon A. Metz
Eugene Morris
Henry Bacon Morrow
Mrs. Hugh T. Nelson
George H. O'Connor
J. C. G. Pattison
John J. Payette
Mrs. Elizabeth H. Peeples
Rev. Frederick W. Perkins
P. S. Riddick
Mrs. Thelma Ross
Dr. L. S. Rowe
Giers W. Sherrill
Berkeley L. Simmons
Rev. Jos. R. Sisco
Rev. C. Ernest Smith
Rev. H. H. D. Sterrett
J. P. Shirer
Jack B. Tate
Edward T. Taylor
Rev. James H. Taylor
Mrs. Caroline Huston Thompson
Francis M. Tompkins
William Roy Vallance
Rev. Charles T. Warner
Roland Whitworth
Frederick William Hale
William Harvey W. Wiley
Manton M. Wydell

Budget and Auditing Committee

James A. Councill, Chairman
Admiral Gary T. Grayson, Ex-Officio
Hugh T. Nelson
Coxcomen Thom
Lloyd B. Wilson

Committee on Press Relations & Communications

Committee on Legislation

Charles Michelson, Chairman

Visc Chairman:

Ira E. Bennett
E. F. Jewett
J. C. G. Pattison
John J. Payette
Mrs. Elizabeth H. Peeples
Rev. Frederick W. Perkins
P. S. Riddick
Mrs. Thelma Ross
Dr. L. S. Rowe
Giers W. Sherrill
Berkeley L. Simmons
Rev. Jos. R. Sisco
Rev. C. Ernest Smith
Rev. H. H. D. Sterrett
J. P. Shirer
Jack B. Tate
Edward T. Taylor
Rev. James H. Taylor
Mrs. Caroline Huston Thompson
Francis M. Tompkins
William Roy Vallance
Rev. Charles T. Warner
Roland Whitworth
Frederick William Hale
William Harvey W. Wiley
Manton M. Wydell

Committee on Press Relations & Communications

Charles Michelson, Chairman

Visc Chairman:

Ira E. Bennett
E. F. Jewett
David Lawrence
Theodore W. Notes
Mrs. Eleanor Patterson

George Abell
Robert B. Armstrong
Norman Baxter
William Blake
H. M. Berry
Raymond F. Brandt
W. L. Bruckelet
Raymond Clapper
Kenneth Clark
W. J. Collins
Chas. J. Columbus
W. L. Donelson, Jr.
Horace Eppes
John J. Fitzpatrick
M. W. Flynn
John Goodloe
Miss Evelyn Gordon
G. R. Holmes
Harold J. T. Horan
G. Adams Howard
Brice R. Howard
Clarence Jackson
Robert Jackson
Marinelle Jennings
Ernest L. Johnson
Miss Ruth Jones
Andrew R. Kelley
Oliver O. Kuhn
Gordon A. Lyon
Paul Mallon
A. D. Marks
Andrew Mas
E. de S. MacKee
W. C. Murphy, Jr.
Fleming Newbold
Dakine. E. O'Connell
Nelson Peyton
Byron Price
Den B. Reed
Edward T. Pelle
Alfred T. Reck
Eleanor Wilson
Mrs. Mae Ward
Max. A. Hale
Mrs. H. V. Pickett
Manuel R. Rogers
Charles G. Rob
John Snure
John T. Suter
G. L. Taury
Robert Thornton
B. N. Timmons
H. M. Van Tine
Arthur Du Titta
James L. Wright

Committee on Legislation

Leslie C. Garnett, Chairman
Brice Clagett, Vice Chairman
Mrs. John W. Bohine
C. C. Caxlen, Jr.
G. Carroll Todd
Frederick De C. Faust
W. Gwynn Gardner
Mrs. Thomas P. Gore
Wilson C. Hall
Mrs. William H. King
Judge J. Wilmer Latimer
Mayor Julius I. Pyer

Committee on Special Entertainment

G. David Houston, Chairman
Woody W. Hall, Executive Secretary

Theodore S. Botts
Thomas H. H. Clarke
James A. Coos
William I. Houpton
Charles B. Lee
J. A. G. LvValle
Arthur C. Newman
F. B. Pelham
Mack D. Rowe
Paul D. Scott
Edward T. Taylor
E. D. Wilkinson
E. G. Willerson

Grandstand Ticket Committee

Daniel C. Roper, Chairman
Col. Edward T. Brown, Vice Chairman

Melvin D. Harriott, Executive Secretary

R. Lee Barnes
Herma Booshehri
Rolie L. Bolling
Brice Clagett
Edson Counts
Levi H. David
Joseph E. Davies
William I. Denning
Mal. Marion Wade Doyle
Goodwin D. Ellsworth, Jr.
Isaac Glass
Bon Guaslin
Mal. Clark G. Hamlin
William J. Hoobes
C. B. Hurley
C. F. Jacobson
W. D. Jackson
Mal. Hamilton Larnan
R. E. Lambert
B. J. Laws
J. Austin Latimer
Rudy N. Miller
James G. Overman
Mal. Ether M. Park

Committee on Special Entertainment

G. David Houston, Chairman
Woody W. Hall, Executive Secretary

Theodore S. Botts
Thomas H. H. Clarke
James A. Coos
William I. Houpton
Charles B. Lee
J. A. G. LvValle
Arthur C. Newman
F. B. Pelham
Mack D. Rowe
Paul D. Scott
Edward T. Taylor
E. D. Wilkinson
E. G. Willerson

Committee on Financial

Lloyd B. Wilson, Chairman

Visc Chairman:

T. W. Braght
D. J. Callahan
E. C. Graham
Mark Lambsbush
H. L. Rust, Jr.

W. W. Wheeler, Secretary

Francis G. Anderson, Jr.
C. A. Ashdown
Harby Blake
Y. E. Booker
Edwin C. Brandenburg
Henry N. Brannen, Jr.

Col. Wesley Brown
Mf. Brown
Miss Coates
A. C. Cane
J. Bowley Chatham
Dr. Arthur C. Christie
E. F. Colladay
J. E. Colliflower
Oscar Coolidge
Karl W. Coby
John H. Davis
H. Reiter DuLant, Jr.
W. W. Everett
W. J. Eyton
Robert F. Fleming
Dr. Harry Fowler
George Garnett
Frank E. Ginnell
Dr. M. J. Gidds
C. C. Goff, Jr.
Eugene C. Gott
Randall H. Hagner
Wm. F. Ham
John H. Hanna
Arthur Hamlett
George W. Harris
Christopher Haunch, Jr.
C. P. Hill
Frank R. Jelleff
Inauguration of the President and Vice President

March 4, 1933

L. S. Jollie
Dolph D. Buck
Joseph D. Kaufman
Caster B. Keene
George Kent
J. C. Koos
May. E. Brooke Lee
Ralph W. Lee
Martin A. Leman
David R. Lincoln
Louis Lefay
T. P. Littlepage
Arthur Marik
George Marshall
Arthur A. May
Edward D. Merryll
William Montgomery
Edgar Morris
E. J. Murphy
Fleming Newbold
Clarence F. Nunnally, Jr.
Bert L. Omlun
c
C. H. Pope
B. H. Roberts
Dr. Sterling Ruffin
John Sall
J. N. Saunders
Carl Schiller
George C. C. Schuette
Mary L. Speary
Arthur J. Sundrum
Sidney T. Tallarek
S. Percy Thompson
Charles H. Tompkins
Leonard Trost
L. H. Vandivered
Ben T. Webster
Dr. Charles S. White
James G. Yaden
E. G. Yonker
Ford E. Young

General Reception Committee

Ray Baxter, Chairman
Vice Chairman:

Woodbury Blake
Mrs. Charles S. Hamlin
Mrs. Hiram W. Johnson
Brig. Gen. William Mitchell
Mrs. Frank G. Newlands
Mrs. Eleanor Patterson
Warren D. Robbins
Joseph P. Tumulty
Seymour W. Welles
Mrs. Woodrow Wilson
Walter Ballard, Secretary

Executive Committee

Franklin Mott Guntner, Chairman
Vice Chairman:

Timothy T. Ansheery
Robert F. Cahill

Edward F. Coddington
Joseph T. Davis
Mrs. George T. Mayne
Joseph C. McGarraghy
Mrs. Evelyn Walsh McGean
Mrs. Edward Mitchell
A. Mitchell Palmer
Miss Josephine Patten
Mrs. Warren D. Robbins
Mrs. Nellie Taylor Rose
Mrs. Joseph P. Tumulty
Miss Sumner Welles

Sub-Committee on Publicity

Miss J. Fred Essary, Chairman
Miss Evelyn Gomeo
Mr. Gilbert Groenwold
Mrs. William Hard
Miss Ruth Jones
Mr. David Lawrence
Mrs. Lucy Tillman Lewis
Mrs. Lloyd Shippen
Mr. William Dent Sterrett
Mr. William D. Trewhitt
Mrs. Joseph P. Tumulty
Mrs. Mae Ward
Miss Joseph E. Washington
Miss Frederic William Wilk

Committee on Reception of Governors of States and Special Distinguished Guests

George S. Abell
Justice Jesse C. Adams
George F. Allen
Robert N. Anderson
Mrs. T. T. Ansheary
Major General T. Q. Ashburn
E. G. Aylett
Miss Ethle Bagley
Justice Jennings Bailey
J. T. Batty
Russell M. Baldwin
R. W. Ballard
John T. Bardshoff
Carlisle Barkeston
J. W. Barnett
Robert Barry
C. A. Beasley
Ulrich Bell
Peary Belmont
Miss Peary Belmont
IRA E. Bennett
Mrs. Irene Bennett
C. K. Berryman
John P. Berigan
James V. Beyer
C. F. Bigelow
J. H. Blankenheim
Miss Vera Bloom
Robert Blue

Miss Mabel T. Boardman
R. Wilmor Bolting
E. C. Brandenburg
Joe R. Brumley
William W. Brude
Col. A. R. Bradley
Mrs. Mark L. Boyton
Miss Frederick H. Brooke
Major Glen Brown
Miss Glen Brown
Arthur Browne
A. Brinton Browne
Mrs. Glen Brown
Arthur L. Brumley
J. A. Brylawski
Walker S. Bull
Miss Anna C. Buttner
Ned Burksman
Harry C. Butcher
Charles Henry Butler
Lee D. Butler
Mrs. Robert J. Bourke
Thomas D. Carson
Merloyd O. Chance
William J. Chewning, Jr.
Mrs. John W. Childress
G. B. Chapman
Walker W. Ciwewell
George C. Christian
John H. Clay
Edward T. Clark
John W. Cleaton
Colonel Edward Clifford
Mrs. Henry Clarke Cole
Phil O. Coffin
Robert F. Cole
Stephanie P. Colladay
Admiral H. I. Cone
Miss Conway Whitley Cooke
George C. Corbin
Oscar Coolican
Colonel Wade H. Cooper
Dr. Edgar P. Cowles
William S. Corby
Mrs. John F. Costello
Judge J. H. Covington
Paul E. Cramton
Justice Joseph W. Cox
A. Lane Cragin
Mrs. Joseph N. Crowe
John T. Crosby
Capt. Elmer E. Crowley
J. Harry Cunningham
Mrs. James F. Curtiss
Harold A. Cusick
Mrs. Ralph A. Cusick
Mrs. E. F. Davis
Harry K. Doughtrey
Mrs. Joseph E. Davis
Mr. William Davis
As J. Day
Walter D. Denecke
B. Golden Donelson
Edward J. S. Donovan
Mrs. Proctor L. Doughtrey
Frank Dorn
Judge M. M. Doyle
Clare H. Draper
E. H. Donley
Mrs. Peter F. Drury
James Clement Dunn
Stephen T. Early

Fred East
Frances Edwards
Wade H. Elger
Mrs. Mary Ragan Elkins
James A. Emery
Joshua F. Evans, Jr.
Gailard S. Ferguson, Jr.
Carter Field
William J. Fothergill
Mrs. Robert V. Fleming
Michael W. Flynn
Rudolph Foster
Henry J. Finley
Martin J. Gallagher
Edward W. Gamble
Isaac Gant
Dr. Frank E. Gantz
Julius Garsick
Finn Garee
George A. Garrett
Robert M. Gates
Fred J. Gauntlett
U. J. Gauntlett
Lester L. Gibson
Clinton W. Gilbert
Charles C. Glover, Jr.
W. Irving Glover
Mrs. Frank Golden
Justice Patton Gordon
J. Dallas Glassy
Hugh C. Grant
Dr. Louis S. Greens
Edward C. Gregory
Doctor Gilbert S. Groenwold
Miss Elizabeth Groves
Mrs. John W. Guider
Randall H. Harris
Colonel Edward A. Halpin
W. F. Ham
George E. Hamilton
John Hatt Hammond
William Hard
Colonel Robert N. Harris
General Peter C. Harris
Leland Harrison
Nelson T. Hartson
Jay C. Hayden
Mrs. Jack Hayes
Arthur Hellen
Miss M. de Helms
J. W. O. Von Herbuli
Mrs. Samuel Herrick
George W. Hess
Frank C. Hight
Mellyn D. Hilbret
Ralph Hill
Joseph H. Himes
Miss Rose Gouverneur Hoes
Frank J. Hogan
Rev. L. Holland
George S. Holmes
Mrs. George R. Holmes
Rice W. Hoag
Ralph W. Hopkins
Stanley Horner
Harley E. Hull
Mrs. John A. Hull
W. E. Humphreys
W. W. Husky
W. F. Johnson
Mrs. John L. Johnston
Rudolph Josse
R. H. Kantz
Saluke H. Kauffmann
Caster B. Klein
K. M. Kempson
William F. Kennedy
James Kern
Harry King
Melton King
John C. Kiezeck
Arthur Kruck
Oliver Owen Kilen
Mrs. Charles Laman
J. O. LaGorce
Admiral Erwin S. Land
Sarah M. Landau
Mark Lansburg
David Lawrence
Wilson Sam J. Lively
E. S. Leggett
Justice F. Dickinson Leidt
Charles R. Leffle
Charles M. Lewis
Charles P. Light
L. P. Lillie
G. Gould Lincoln
John M. Littlepage
Mrs. John Lemon Loose
Mrs. E. E. Lord
Joseph N. Lowe
Mrs. John L. Lucas
Rufus Luk
E. J. MacMillan
Rowland R. May
Colonel Charles H. March
Mrs. Minnie E. Martin
Doctor Clay H. Heck Maxim
George T. Maxwell
Guy Mason
Doctor William B. Mason
Frank F. Moses
Henry B. Mott
George H. Mott
Mrs. William B. Mason
Jerry A. Matthews
Judge Robert F. Matttingly
Chart B. Matlab
George B. McClellan
F. Morgan McConkie
Malcolm S. McCrory
Friedeck D. McKeen
Lawrence Mellett
William M. Merritt
Mrs. George Mist
Doctor James F. Mitchell
Frank B. Minto
Warwick Montgomery, Jr.
L. Gardner Moore
Howard Morgan
Doctor William A. Morgan
Ephraim E. Morgan
Frank F. Moses
Rev. Gen. Andrew Moses
William J. Neale
John Nelles
Doctor Thomas E. Neel
Avon M. Nevius
Mrs. Sam J. Nicholson
Soderren Nicholson
Fred K. Nielson
Muirhead Niswonger
John J. Noonan
Frank B. Noyes
Newbold Ocean
Colonel Arthur O'Brien
Clarence A. O'Brien
Major John Garvan O'Brien
Mrs. Daniel Francis O'Connell
Clare D. O'Connor
T. V. O'Connor
Hugh O'Donnell
Justice T. E. O'Donoghue
Mrs. M. M. O'Reilly
Robert Latham Owen
Mrs. A. Mitchell Palmer
Major Julius J. Peets
Mrs. Sallie V. H. Peckett
Mrs. J. T. Pendleton
Landra B. Peatt
John Peokey
Morris Pfeiffer
James D. Peckett
William Jennings Pace
Mrs. Natalie C. Peckett
S. M. Peck
James B. Reynolds
Mrs. Mary Roberts Rinehart
Major M. J. Rippin
Mrs. E. L. Ross
Mrs. Mary Rosannville
Charles G. Ross
Leo A. Rover
Frank M. Russell
Leo R. Sack
Captain Samuel S. Sandberg
Frank Martin Savage
Fred S. Schow
Robert T. Scott
Doctor R. Levan Sexton
James T. Shackman
G. Melvin Shadle
SWAG Stetler
Mrs. Charles Shubert
Mrs. Charles Shoebott
Washington Skinner
C. Bossum Scott
John H. Small
Mrs. John H. Small
Arthur Clarence Smith
Charles Brooks Smith
Mrs. Charles Brooks Smith
Mrs. Charles Brooks Smith
John Lewis Smith
Mrs. Nelle Oates Smith
Roland K. Smith
Ernest W. Specht
W. H. Spencer
John Shrebe
Edward Snyder
William W. Stand
Mrs. Virginia White Speak
Lee A. Speirs
Mary Spaulding
A. O. Stanley
Frederick W. Steckman
Seymour M. Steelhagen
Luthea G. Steward
Mrs. Florence Jackson Stoddard
Fred Stoneham
June C. Sutter
John T. Sutter
Claude Sutherland
Henri Svedman
Sidney F. Taliaferro
Doctor James H. Taylor
Colonel John W. Taylor
Mark Tidball
George H. Thomas
Theodore Tillak
Baron N. Timms
Lawson H. Treadwell
Ray V. Tucker
C. Carroll Tuff
Justice Wells Van Devanter
Major W. A. Van Duzen
Albert B. Wakenight
Theodore C. Wallen
Judge Raymond A. Walsh
Harvey Walnman
Gottfried Warfield
Harry J. Wells
Helen M. Wells
Alfred R. Wenzler
Judge Richard S. Whaley
Justice Alfred A. Wheat
Mrs. Spofford White
Frederick William Wise
James C. Wills
Mrs. Joseph E. Willard
Mrs. Mabel Walker Willibrandt
Gladeon White
James T. Williams, Jr.
Major-General C. C. Williams
Mrs. John R. Williams
Nathan Boone Williams
Colonel Eugene B. Williams
Mrs. Richard Wimmer
Harley P. Wilson
General Blanton Winship
F. Howard Woodrow
Paul Woolery
General William M. Wright
Manton M. Wyllis
Mrs. Eunice Yost
John Russell Young

Sub-Committee on Music
Committee on Special Religious Services

Sub-Committee on Decorations

Chairman
Vice Chairman

Chairman
Vice Chairman

Chairman
Vice Chairman

Chairman
Vice Chairman
EVER since John and Abigail Adams moved into the unfinished structure, surrounded by race tracks and brick yards, in November of 1800, the White House has been the official residence of our Presidents. But before that date and since (for short periods of time) other mansions have housed our Chief Executives and their families.

The first President of the United States selected the Franklin House, on the corner of Franklin and Cherry Streets, New York City, as his official residence. The house proved too small and the Washingtons moved to the Macomb Mansion, located at 39 Broadway, a short distance from the famous Trinity Church.

When the Capital was transferred to Philadelphia, a new official residence had to be selected. The city of Philadelphia erected a stately Presidential Mansion; but Washington refused to occupy it on the grounds that it was too large and pretentious. The building later became the home of the University of Pennsylvania.

In Philadelphia, the Washingtons occupied a small, red brick house at 190 High Street. When a pestilence broke out in the city, in 1793, everybody who was able to flee did so. The President took up temporary residence at Germantown, at the home of Colonel Isaac Franks, a Revolutionary War officer.

When John Adams became President he, too, refused to occupy the Presidential Mansion, preferring the same house on High Street that the Washingtons occupied. When the present city of Washington became the Capital, the Adams family moved to the unfinished building which we know as the White House.

After the partial burning of the White House, President Madison occupied the house on the northwest corner of Pennsylvania Avenue and Nineteenth Street. He also lived in the famous Octagon House, on New York Avenue and Eighteenth Street. It was here that the Treaty of Ghent, bringing the War of 1812 to an official close, was signed.

President Monroe, for a short period after his inauguration, lived at 2017 Eye Street, a house which is still standing. Monroe then went on his good-will tour of the North and West and did not occupy the White House until September 17, 1817.

In 1902, the executive offices were moved from the main building to a temporary building west of the White House. While this change was being made, the Roosevelts occupied the house at 22 Jackson Place, once the home of President Polk's Secretary of War, William M. Marcy.

President Calvin Coolidge was forced to leave the White House temporarily, in the summer of 1927, while the historic mansion was being covered with a new roof. The Coolidges occupied the home of Mrs. Eleanor Patterson at 15 Dupont Circle. No changes have been made since that time.

The home of our Presidents is built of sandstone and is painted white. It is not certain, however, that the name of the mansion originated because of its color. Until the Monroe Administration, the White House was officially called "President's House." Our fifth President changed the name to "Executive Mansion." This was the official name until the Roosevelt Administration when it was officially designated "White House," its popular name for many years previous.

During the years, the White House has taken on tradition, dignity and importance. Much recent history was born there. But despite its use as the stage for world drama, the house which Franklin D. Roosevelt and his family are soon to occupy remains, as always, a charming home.
INAUGURAL BALLS of the PAST

By DAVID RANKIN BARDEE
Member, the Official Program Committee

They are the one touch of royalty among all our republican institutions, and even down to the last one, that of President Taft in 1909, this feature was emphasized. Washington, it is true, felt perfectly miserable in the part he was forced to play in the first of these functions; but being a king among men, he went through his scenes according to the play-book as it was written for the first Inaugural Ball.

Unlike all the other inaugural balls, the first one, given in May or June, 1789, came several weeks after the inauguration. The General awaited the coming of his Lady, for it was to be her party as well as his. She reached New York late in May, and the ball came quickly thereafter.

It was arranged by the New York Dancing Assemblies, and was held in their hall on lower Broadway. All the elite of the city, and members of Congress and heads of the Government, more than three hundred people, were present.

In one end of their hall a dais was erected, reached by four steps, and on it a sofa, richly upholstered in damask, for General and Mrs. Washington. Along the beautifully decorated walls were long benches for the dancers to occupy. Before a couple could dance, the gentleman escorted his lady to the dais, they mounted the steps, bowed before the President and the Presidentess, and then retired to the floor. On the conclusion of the dance they went through the same performance, etc. they took their seats.

General Washington danced on this evening. He dearly loved it. His partners in the cotillion were Mrs. Peter Van Brooks Livingston and Mrs.
Alexander Hamilton; with Miss Van Zandt and Lady William Maxwell he danced a minuet. It was noted that his partners were young, beautiful and graceful.

So far as we know he was the only one of our Presidents who has ever danced at an Inaugural Ball. His successors have marched down the ball room amid the plaudits of the assembled dancers to music specially composed for the occasion, or to the popular "Hail to the Chief" of later years, but none of them has seemed to love the dance well enough to participate in it. General W. H. Harrison made a wager with a pretty young miss, that if he were elected he would dance with her provided she gave him a kiss. At his inaugural ball she claimed her forfeit, after giving him the kiss, but the old soldier backed clean down.

On the occasion of Washington's second inauguration the Dancing Assemblies of Philadelphia gave an Inaugural Ball to commemorate that event, the anniversary of the birth of the nation and the departure of the members of Congress. This is the only time Congress has ever been so honored. It usually departs, unwept, unhonored, and unsung.

There is considerable doubt as to when the first Inaugural Ball was given in Washington, but the records seem to point to March 3, 1801, to celebrate Jefferson's first inauguration, or rather, his election—for he was not inaugurated until the next day. If he was present, we have no note of it.

Madison's first ball, on the evening of March 4, 1809, is accepted by some historians as being the first Inaugural Ball in history, simply because a very fine historian said it was. Later researches show that it was neither the first in history nor probably the first given in Washington. This one Jefferson did attend, and was the real king of, sharing the honors with Mistress Dolly Madison. It was given at Long's Hotel, a boarding house on Capitol Hill, which long since disappeared.

Four hundred persons of the first quality attended this ball. When Jefferson arrived, the fiddlers struck up "Jefferson's March," and on the arms of his private secretary, he marched the length of the ball room and took a seat on the dais. Almost immediately after the President and Mrs. Madison were announced. "Madison's March" was played, they marched down the ball room, and took chairs on the dais.

Jefferson left early, and the Madisons left after the supper was served. The President took in the lady of the British Minister; Mrs. Madison went in on the arm of the French minister, but she

---

"C. W. Handly Studios

Inaugural Ball of President Lincoln, March 4, 1861"
had England on her left. This never happened again, for since then the Diplomatic Corps have simply been guests at these balls, and the aspersion of royalty diminished by that much.

James Monroe was the last of our Presidents to wear a cocked hat and Colonial clothes, but his reign was marked by the beginning of a change in the management of these balls, which changed from the Dancing Assemblies to the citizens at large, thus making the Inaugural Ball a civic instead of a purely social affair. Hitherto the Dancing Assemblies invited only those who had their names on the Social Register—now anybody who could buy a ticket could come, under certain restrictions.

Mrs. Monroe was an English woman, of very aristocratic manners. She initiated the custom of sending out cards to her receptions, and she imported her costumes from Paris. A very beautiful and queenly woman, she carried off the belle air even better than Dolly Madison could; and the two Monroe Inaugural Balls were both splendid affairs, the last one very colorful.

General Jackson, who was another king of men, had the simplest of all the inaugurations, but he attended none of the Inaugural Balls given in his honor. In 1829 he was in deep mourning; in 1833, just a century ago, two balls were given to celebrate the renewal of his term of office. Why he declined to attend the balls in 1833 has never been explained. When Van Buren was inaugurated, in 1837, he not only attended that ball but was the hero of it.

During the decade 1840-50, when the Whig Party was in the ascendency, Inaugural Balls were so much the rage that they dwarfed the interest in other parts of the inauguration ceremonies. General Harrison was honored with three balls, and attended every one. Not to be outdone, the Democrats had two balls for President Polk.

On the turn of the wheel the Whigs came back into power in 1849, and arranged an exclusive partisan Whig Ball, erecting a hall in which to hold it, and having it managed only by Whigs. This excited the ire of the Democrats and of the citizens of Washington, who for the first time were not asked to arrange the ball, and so an opposition ball, advertised as "The National Inauguration Ball Without Distinction of Party," was given. Among its managers were the most distinguished men of both parties. The Vice President, a Democrat, and the Speaker, a Whig, headed the committee. Jefferson Davis, John C. Calhoun, and S. A. Douglas were among the managers. Abraham Lincoln was a manager of both balls.

President Pierce had the managers cancel the Inaugural Ball to be given in his honor, two days
before his inauguration. It had been widely advertised, costumes had been bought, the banquet arranged, and every preparation made. The excuse given was that the President was in mourning, but so was General Jackson in mourning in 1829.

Both of the Lincoln Inaugural Balls have historic interest. He attended both, and sat on the throne, at the second in a chair of blue and gold. At the first he was escorted by the Mayor of Washington, and Mrs. Lincoln came in on the arm of Senator Douglas, an old beau. So far as the President was concerned, his mind was not on dancing at either ball, but the first was marked by much introducing and handshaking. He left early and Mrs. Lincoln stayed on, dancing the night through. Among her partners was Senator Douglas.

The second Lincoln ball was held during the war, and while Washington was filled with hospitals and sick and dying soldiers. The Patent Office was beautifully decorated for it, three bands were provided, and a crowd of five thousand jammed the building. Mr. Lincoln, we are told, took a boyish delight in watching the dancing. Very early he surrendered his chair to Mrs. Senator Harris, of New York, while he stood back of her and Mrs. Lincoln, against the wall, with a group of his friends.

A disgraceful scene marred this ball. The dining hall would seat no more than three hundred at a time and five thousand, most of them ladies, had to be fed. The crowd very rudely broke into the dining room and seized food from the tables, most of which was wasted. The Lincolns quickly left the hall, but the rioting went on all night.

Among the guests at this ball was John Wilkes Booth, and his fiancée, the daughter of Senator Hale, of New Hampshire.

It is remarkable that the melodrama of this ball should be reenacted four years later, when the first Grant Inaugural Ball was held at the Treasury. About five times as many tickets were sold as the building would accommodate; the arrangements were haphazard, the stairways became jammed, ladies had their clothes torn off of them, the crowd became a mob and rushed the kitchens, and the ball broke up in several free-for-all battles. No ball ever was so "bawled out" as this one.

Four years later the Grant Ball was held in a blizzard in an unheated building, where the guests arrived heavily muffled in furs and topcoats and never took them off.

From 1883, when the first Cleveland Inaugural Ball was held, until 1909, when the Taft and last Inaugural Ball was given, the Pension Office was brought into requisition. These later affairs were very similar in arrangement—the grand march, the reception, the viewing of the dances from a lofty balcony or throne tower, the rich costumes, the beautiful ladies, and immense crowds, with now and then a break in the monotony, as when Mrs. Cleveland gave distinction to the second Cleveland Ball, the Harrisons vetoed wine at their ball, Mrs. McKinley fainted while trying to make the grand march at both of the McKinley Balls. Colonel Roosevelt the hero of the second McKinley Ball, and Alice Roosevelt organized a grand march of her own at her father's ball. The Roosevelts attended the 1901 ball.

For the Taft Ball, Mrs. Taft wore a regal costume, and during the grand march some one stepped on her train and caused a traffic jam. She halted the march and imperiously had her train straightened out, while her jolly husband looked on and laughed his big hearty laugh.

Mrs. Woodrow Wilson put an end to the Inaugural Balls in 1913. When she was consulted about the ball, she said: "I cannot bear to think of a ball, with modern dances, when Woodrow is inaugurated."

The President-elect upheld her, as James K. Polk did his wife in the matter of being terenaded on the Sabbath. "Sarah attends to all domestic affairs," Polk said, when appealed to; "and she thinks this is domestic."

In the pageantry of the Presidency the Inaugural Ball has borne a very striking and essential part, and it should never be abandoned.
MISTRESSES of the WHITE HOUSE

By ELEANOR CONNOLLY and DOROTHY V. LEE
Members, Official Program Committee

WHAT about the wives of the thirty Presidents? Where were they born and what sort of women were they?

The public acts and countenances of their husbands are printed firmly in the history books. Their profiles are nobly etched on coins and postage stamps. But the mistresses of the White House, with few exceptions, are vague personalities.

Tradition fondly hoped that each first lady was a combination of beauty and sweetness, youth and sagacity, discretion and gayety, wit and charity, not forgetting such incidental characteristics as intellectual and domesticity. Liberal public opinion of today demands that she be a brilliant and economical hostess, a firm and loving mother, that she dress smartly and inexpensively, that she be well versed in American, European, Eastern and South American politics, but that she have the good judgment never to air her opinions in the presence of her betters; that she have complete assurance and confidence in herself but that never must she put her own interests ahead of her husband’s, that she be—in short—a good wife! A gentle power behind the Presidential Throne!

Just how near each mistress of the White House has come to this exquisite but sometimes elusive ideal may be imagined by reading the sketches of their lives. Since these ladies were only a little less human than their liege lords, must be forgiven them if they were not the pattern of perfection. They came from different parts of the country. From the Western and Southwestern frontiers, from big cities, small towns and plantations, from the leisurely South and crisp New England. They brought with them the ideals of their girlhood environment mellowed a bit by their experience. If each one of them were over eager to undo the mistakes of her predecessors, surely such a tendency is accounted a virtue in their illustrious husbands. Only Martha Washington was lacking in this ambition for improvement. Martha Washington as every one undoubtedly knows was the first wife of the first President. She had no predecessors in the role of First Lady.

Nor is she properly included among the mistresses of the White House. She never lived in the White House. Washington the city was not in existence when her husband was President. The capital of the young nation was first in New York and later in Philadelphia.

Although the wife of the first President was a Virginian, New England contributed the first mistress of the White House.
Abigail Smith, daughter of a clergyman of Braintree, Massachusetts, against the wishes of her family, married John Adams, a lawyer, and a son of a small farmer. John Adams was then obscure and "a poor match" but he was destined to be not only the second President of the United States but the first of the "Adams dynasty," which has contributed more distinguished men to the service of the Republic than any other American family. Abigail Adams was a personality in her own right. She needed the courage and industry for which she was admired in her girlhood, when she and the President moved to the new Federal city of Washington only half emerged from the mud and the swamps of the Potomac flats, and took up their residence in the bleak half-completed President's Palace.

The two interesting daughters of the widowed President Thomas Jefferson, Mrs. William Mann Randolph and Mrs. John Wayles Eppes often visited their father in Washington and acted as his hostesses. The charming Mrs. Eppes found it more convenient to be with her distinguished father than did her sister Mrs. Randolph. For Mrs. Randolph, though she had the advantages of a European education and travel had at the time her father was President twelve children. Twelve children were no easier to leave behind a hundred years ago than they are now. Mr. Jefferson managed his own social affairs without much assistance anyhow. He entertained seldom and always scandalized the wives of officials and foreign representatives by his disregard of formal dress and by refusing to hold "audiences."

When "Dolly" Madison came into the White House the social austerity of the Jeffersonian days vanished. Dolly was a gay and kindly spirit. Although she was born a Quakeress, she loved parties. It made her very happy to see her friends and "Mr. Madison's people" enjoying themselves. When Mr. Madison married her, she was the vivacious widow of John Todd of Philadelphia. And vivacious and beloved she remained throughout her long eventful life. Her tact and genuine kindliness were of tremendous value to her husband and his administration. With characteristic guile she persuaded Congress to appropriate money for the completion of the White House and for the maintenance of thirty servants and—unbelievable extravagance—for the installation of bells to summon the new minions. Despite her lack of affection she presided at the White House with real dignity.

When James Monroe was Minister to France his wife, the beautiful Elizabeth Kortwright of smart New York society, was called "La Belle Americaine." When Mr. Monroe became President "La Belle Americaine" brought to Washington the grand manner of New York and European society. Within the White House just rebuilt, she set up a social régime of most unaccustomed formality. Guests not wearing court dress and without credentials were not admitted to her dignified levees. However, she did have to yield to certain governmental policies. And on one formal occasion representatives of six Indian tribes, some almost naked were welcomed within the drawing rooms just refurbished with French importations.

Mrs. John Quincy Adams was Louisa Catherine Johnson, daughter of Joshua Johnson of Maryland, then Consul General to London.
Her mother was French. John Quincy Adams, the son of the dauntless Abigail and John Adams, the Second President, was traveling in Europe when he met Louisa Johnson. After their marriage Louisa, having been born and educated in Europe, was an enchanting companion on her husband’s missions to Russia and Paris.

A woman of fashion with many accomplishments and at the same time a devoted mother. She was an extremely popular hostess when Mr. Adams was American Minister at the Court of Saint James and also while he was Secretary of State in Washington. As wife of President Adams she found the White House a much more agreeable place than the wretched barn her mother-in-law Abigail had struggled to make liveable.

Mrs. Andrew Jackson died a few months before her husband’s inauguration. The President brought her nephew whom he had adopted as his son Andrew Jackson Donelson and his wife from Tennessee to Washington. Mrs. Donelson was very young and very friendly and she loved cheerful parties in the White House. With President Jackson “The People’s President,” she entertained an astonishing “Mixture of aristocracy and the masses.” When Mrs. Donelson died Mrs. Andrew Jackson, Jr., wife of an adopted son of President Jackson presided at the White House.

Letitia Christian, of Virginia, the first Mrs. John Tyler, was an invalid. Mrs. Robert Tyler, her daughter-in-law and Mrs. Semple, her daughter, presided over the White House. The marriage of the third daughter of the family was the only brilliant social affair of this administration. Informal drawing rooms, when any one might call until ten o’clock, were held every evening. Two years after his first wife’s death, President Tyler married the young Miss Julia Gardiner of New York.

He was the first President to marry while in the White House.

Sarah Childress, daughter of a merchant from Rutherford County, Tenn., was married to James Knox Polk at the age of twenty. As she was educated under the strict discipline of the Moravian Institute at Salem, N. C., and though she was much honored as mistress of the White House she curtailed the entertainment, refreshments and dancing. Mrs. Polk was the first and only mistress of the White House to serve as her husband’s private secretary. Her understanding of politics and knowledge of men of her day made her of inestimable value.

Zachary Taylor married Margaret Smith, of Maryland, who followed him throughout his military career, making a home wherever she could pitch camp. She cared little for formal society. Her third and youngest daughter, Betty, wife of Colonel Bliss, presided over the White House. The second daughter eloped from the White House and married Jefferson Davis, afterwards President of the Confederacy.
During the four years of the devoted courtship of Millard Fillmore, a clothier's apprentice, and Abigail Powers, of Buffalo, N. Y., daughter of a Baptist minister, Abigail Powers, herself a school teacher, helped her fiance become a lawyer. As the wife of Millard Fillmore, one day to become President of the United States, she always an intellectual, began the first White House Library with a Congressional appropriation of $5,000. Mrs. Fillmore also improved the White House kitchen. She found cooking being done on the hearth and changed to a coal stove.

The daughter of a former President of Bowdoin College, Maine, Jane Appleton married Franklin Pierce in 1834. Her three children died before she came to the White House. She was an invalid and seldom entertained. The strict observance of the Sabbath was a passion with her. Mrs. Pierce's style of dress like her manner was unobtrusive though the fashion of the day was the extreme hoop skirt started by the Empress Eugenie.

Miss Harriet Lane, the niece and adopted daughter of the bachelor President James Buchanan became the first lady at the age of twenty-eight. She was tall and blonde and beautiful and had the charming manners accenteduated by an education at Georgetown Convent, in Washington. While Harriet Lane presided for her uncle in London, Queen Victoria accorded her the rank of a wife of the United States Minister and she became a distinguished hostess among the ladies of the diplomatic corps at the Court of St. James. When she became mistress of the White House, she filled it with plants and flowers. The Prince of Wales, afterwards Edward the VII, was a guest at the White House and devoted himself to the pretty Miss Lane. She married Henry Elliott Johnston.

When Mary Todd was a young girl in Lexington, Ky., she announced that she would some day be the wife of a President of the United States. Not long after this optimistic remark she visited her sister in Springfield, Ill., met a tall studious young lawyer named Abraham Lincoln, married him and so realized her youthful ambition. As First Lady she had many difficult responsibilities. During the anxious Civil War days she still tried to keep the social life at the White House as normal as possible. She adored her husband, and wished to share his duties. Always when receiving, she stood as near him as the voluminous styles of the day would permit. The Lincoln entertainments were always attended by both elegantly and simply dressed people.

Mrs. Andrew Johnson was Eliza McCord, of Greenville, Tenn., and married at the age of seventeen. She was a school teacher and encouraged and instructed her husband. Because she was a victim of consumption when she came to the White House, her daughter Martha, wife of Senator Patterson, presided with elegance and tact. Mrs. Johnson's dairy was her pride and her cows grazed in what is now the White House garden.

Ulysses S. Grant married Miss Julia Dent from White Haven, near St. Louis. She and the President brought to the White House charming simplicity. Mrs. Grant dressed plainly but richly. When the gloom of the Civil War was lifted she entertained often. During her regime a housekeeper was employed, for the first time and the White House was improved by gas illumination.

Lucy Webb, daughter of Dr. and Mrs. James Webb, of Delaware, Ohio, educated at Wesleyan Female College, married Rutherford B. Hayes. She abolished wine from the White House table except
during the visit of the two Russian Grand Dukes. Dancing, lawn parties, card parties and musicals were prohibited, but she did hold the necessary receptions.

Lucetia Randolph was married to James A. Garfield then an Ohio college president in 1858. After President Garfield's assassination Mrs. Mary Arthur McElroy became mistress of the White House and mothered the children of her widower brother Chester A. Arthur, who succeeded to the presidency. The new President enjoyed entertaining and Mrs. McElroy possessed the same grace and charm of manner that made her brother popular. She introduced serving of tea at the afternoon receptions, and refreshments for all other parties.

Miss Rose Elizabeth Cleveland, the talented sister of President Grover Cleveland, was hostess from March 4, 1885, until June 2, 1886, when the President married his ward Miss Frances Folsom, of Buffalo, N. Y., in the White House. The wedding took place in the Blue Room in the presence of only members of the cabinet and relatives. After a short honeymoon Mrs. Cleveland assumed her new and trying duties with a graciousness that captivated the nation. She held Saturday afternoon receptions because it gave an opportunity to those who were employed to have access to the White House. Ruth Cleveland was the first child born to a President's wife in the Executive Mansion.

When Benjamin Harrison came to the White House the duties of hostess devolved upon his widowed daughter, Mrs. McKeel. Mrs. Harrison, who was Caroline Lavinia Scott, of Indianapolis, Ind., was a cultured, hospitable woman but she preferred her role as grandmother to that of First Lady.

Mrs. William McKinley, who was Ida Saxton, of Canton, Ohio, was an invalid during her husband's administration, and the object of his most tender and devoted solicitude. She always sat at the President's right at formal entertainments regardless of the prominence of the guests present.

Mrs. Theodore Roosevelt was both competent and charming. She carried many responsibilities as wife of the President, and mother of a large vigorous family, but she also was a delightful hostess. A social secretary was required to assist her in carrying out her far-reaching hospitality. The two most important social events of the Roosevelt administration were the marriage of Alice to Representative Nicholas Longworth, and the debut of the daughter of Ethel Roosevelt.

Mrs. William H. Taft, when she was Helen Herron, of Cincinnati, visited the White House as the guest of the Garfields. Twenty-three years later she returned as its mistress. She did much for the social life of the Executive Mansion, inaugurating suppers at the large receptions, and giving graceful garden parties.

Ellen Louise Axson who married Woodrow Wilson June, 1881, in Savannah, Ga., came with her three grown daughters to the White House, where she presided with characteristic southern hospitality. Her death occurred in August, 1914.

Mrs. Edith Bolling Galt was born in Wytheville, Va., the daughter of a prominent lawyer, and married President Wilson in 1915. She was a delightful hostess and well loved in Washington before as well as after becoming the President's wife. Always she devoted herself to the care of her distinguished husband during the trying period of the World War and after his physical collapse.

Mrs. Warren G. Harding was born in Marion, Ohio, and was educated in music in Cincinnati as well as in Europe. After her marriage she assisted her husband in his newspaper ventures and contributed toward the advancement of his career.

One of the most gracious White House hostesses of recent memory was Mrs. Calvin Coolidge, formerly Grace A. Goodhue, of Burlington, Vt., a graduate of the University of Vermont. Though her husband was indifferent to social life she entered with zest into her official duties.

Mrs. Herbert Hoover was Lou Henry and born in Iowa, the daughter of a small town banker. While studying at Leland Stanford University she met Mr. Hoover, who was a senior, and they were married in 1889. They have two sons. Mrs. Hoover has sponsored the Girl Scout movement.
The Inaugural Medal was designed by Paul Manship, widely recognized as one of the world's foremost sculptors. It is three inches in diameter and so high is the relief on the obverse side, which contains the profile likeness of President-elect Roosevelt, that in producing the replicas at the Philadelphia Mint it was necessary to strike each disc twelve times. The design on the reverse side, symbolizing the first Ship of State, is the U. S. S. Constitution, copied from an antique print of "Old Ironsides," made at the time she was launched and now in the notable naval prints collection of Mr. Roosevelt at Crum Elbow. The Winged Woman symbolizes the Ship of State of the present.

Only 7,500 bronze replicas will be issued.
Price $2.50 each. Send orders to Robert W. Woodley, Chairman, Inaugural Committee on Medals, Transportation Building, Washington, D. C.
Souvenir and Autograph Page

attended the Inauguration of
FRANKLIN D. ROOSEVELT and JOHN N. GARNER, WASHINGTON, D. C.,
MARCH 4, 1933.

Arrived with

Stopped at the Hotel

Visited the following Historic Shrines:

AUTOGRAPHS
The Inaugural Committee
requests the honor of the presence of
Miss Grace Tully
to attend and participate in the Inauguration of
Franklin Delano Roosevelt
as President of the United States of America
and
John Nance Garner
as Vice President of the United States of America
on Saturday the fourth of March
one thousand nine hundred and thirty-three
in the City of Washington

Please reply to: Ray Baker
Chairman, Committee on Reception of Governors of States
Special Distinguished Guests
Washington Building, Washington, D.C.

Cary T. Grayson
Chairman, Inaugural Committee
The Inaugural Committee
requests the honor of the presence of
Miss Paula Jilly
to attend and participate in the Inauguration of
Franklin Delano Roosevelt
as President of the United States of America
and
John Nance Garner
as Vice President of the United States of America
on Saturday the fourth of March
one thousand nine hundred and thirty-three
in the City of Washington

Please reply to Ray Baker
Chairman, Committee on Reception of Governors of States
and
Special Distinguished Guests
Washington Building, Washington, D.C.

Cary T. Grayson
Chairman, Inaugural Committee